
Our first Education Department school building was 
built on an acre of land sold by the Kneeshaw brothers 
to the Colonial Government for £20. Builders Quarral 
and MacKenzie built the one room school building for 
the Glen Park community (primarily miners, timber 
workers and orchardists) for £83 in 1872. There were 
as many as 59 students here in 1878 so it must have 
been quite a squeeze. 
By the 1960s, the building was becoming too difficult 
to maintain, a Public Works Department note dated 
April, 1962 recommends urgent work be carried out 
at the existing building as it could be shaken by hand 
and moved in a high wind. After nearly 100 years of 
service it was replaced in 1963 (The old building was 
moved off the school site and used for a while as a hall 
but fell into disrepair and was demolished in 1998). 
The new school was opened by the Director of Educa-
tion Mr A. McDonell ,and MLA Tom Evans on Novem-
ber 22nd 1963(refer photo). A contract was awarded to 
A. V. Jennings for the erection of a new school building on 

the site of the old one.  The total cost of the new school building 
was £2478. A mod-2 portable (built in 1968) was added to the 
site in the late 70s. A new Mod 5 double teaching space re-
placed the 1963 building (still in use on site) in 2011 (officially 
opened in 2013 by Catherine King MP ) as part of the Building 
the Education Revolution and we just added an outdoor learn-
ing space to the 1963 room in 2022.  
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Using our outdoor learning space for science experiments. (We 

have real scientist s (Heather from Swinburn) visiting us for 3 all-

day science incursions this year) 

A big thank you to the staff of Glen Park Primary: Pauline Moody, Linda Duke,  
Ryan Uren, Kirrily Urquhart, Kari O’Gorman, and our supportive school commu-
nity                  
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This year has already been a very busy one with three 
new Preps (our biggest Prep intake in 15 years) starting 
this year.  
This year we are painting our old building and replacing 
our old picnic table (hopefully we can replace our front 
fence this year too.) Our outdoor learning area is fin-
ished and in use. Once again we are offering LOTE 
(Japanese) and tutoring. We also have music therapy as 
part of the state government’s mental health initiative. 
We offer one to one IT access and individual learning 
plans to all our students.  
We are able to fully resume our excursions program 
with all our grade 5 students going to Somers Camp, 
excursions to see Mary Poppins and an excursion to 
Phillip Island. We also have our 10 week gymnastics and 
swimming program to look forward to in term 3. We will 
also have 2 more Scientists in Schools incursions in term 
2 and 4. Another busy year at Glen Park PS. 
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History of Glen Park 1963-2023 

PHOTO ALBUM:  
School photos 1976, 1985 and 2016. 
Certificate of occupancy for the 1963 
building, picnic at the White Swan 
1990, girls outside the 1963 building 
and kids trying to keep warm in the 
‘new’ building in the 1960s. Meeting 
with the Minister 1999  
Background photo is of the old school 
1960s.after its relocation. 
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A country school on the edge of the city 

 

CUTS 
In the early 90s, the Kennett Government made severe cuts to state education funding which saw thousands of teachers lost to 
the system and over 300 schools were closed (most of them in rural Victoria). 
Glen Park was spared closure  (there was a mandatory policy that said if your school fell under 12 enrolments you would be per-
manently closed within weeks) .These were difficult years in small rural schools and it’s taken many years for us to bounce back.  
 
Bush fires in 1997 caused extensive local damage and destroyed the local fire truck (the school was very close to destruction 
itself).  The locals rallied around to raise money to replace the truck and repair fire damage. The school stopped fund raising so 
that money in the community could be dedicated to that.  Unfortunately, the fire and government policy led to the closure of 
the White Swan Reservoir to the public. 
The Brack’s Government in 2000 scrapped the mandatory school closure policy and instead allowed schools to determine their 
own fate. As a consequence, Glen Park has been able to stay open even with a fluctuating enrolment. 
 
FUTURE 
The Federal Government invested billions of dollars into education during the GFC and we benefitted by having a $300 000 Mod 
5 built for our school giving us state of the art education facilities, in the same way our 1963 cohort of students benefitted from 
their new building. Since the late 1990s we have had a policy of investing in our students and can now boast modern ICT and a 
library and teaching resources second to none. We have been at the cutting edge of education with early adoption of thinking 
curriculum, one-to one ICT devises, personalised learning plans and integrated learning. 
Glen Park weathered the COVID Pandemic and has a bright future providing high quality free and secular state education to its 
local community as it has done for the last 150 years. 

CENTENARY CELEBRATIONS 
In 1963, Glen Park PS had a major facelift with the old school building 
replaced with a new school building (refer page 1).  
 
To mark the centenary of the school, a committee was formed in 
1971 to plan a "Back To School" celebration. The Head Teacher at the 
time, Mr. N. Hunter was president, Ron Quick treasurer and Wally 
Coffield secretary of the committee. Other members recorded in the 
minutes as being part of the committee were Mrs. Mathews, Mrs. 
Maddern, Mrs. Rowe, Mrs. Ralston, Mrs. Lithgo, Ron Ralston, W. 
Rumler and Mrs. Rumler.  
The 23rd of October 1971 was chosen as the date for the centenary 
as this was almost exactly 100 years to the day of the first meeting 
which made the decision to form the Bungaree Springs School. 
Official guests, Mr L Yandell District, Inspector of Schools, The Presi-
dent of the Shire of Bungaree, Mr Stan Slater, and Mr. Tom Evans, 
MLA for Ballarat North were invited. Mr. Tom Evans unveiled the 
plaque on the centenary gates. (still there) .Although the weather on 
the day was not good, a large crowd was in attendance. A roll call of 
past pupils was held and the oldest past pupil in attendance, Mrs. 
Margaret Skinner (nee Coutts) was presented with a tin of biscuits. 
 
I am reliably told that students still sometimes rode to school on 
horses and that there was a ‘stable’ available for them to use. Fenc-
ing was improved and in the late 70s a mod 2 (small) relocatable 
classroom was added with covered walkways. Large cypress trees 
around the school were removed in the 80s. Glen Park students were 
renowned for their sporting prowess at this time, often starring at the 
Dean/Newlyn School Sports throughout the 60s-80s. The school pop-
ulation increased and in 1990 we had 24 students. At this time our 
parents club was very active raising a lot of money for the school. 



THE WHITE SWAN RESERVOIR 

Glen Park. Quality Government Education since 1872 

A small  country school for the 21st 

century 

 

The total water storage controlled by the Ballarat Water Com-
mission became so seriously depleted at the beginning of the 
year 1939 that it was necessary for the Commission to ration 
supplies to the population of approximately 45,000 persons re-
siding in the City Of Ballarat and District. This prompted the 
Commission to investigate the possibilities of increasing the wa-
ter storage capacity. Consequently, during the early stages of 
the recent world conflict, the Commissioner (the late Mr. G.M. 
Searle) examined a number of additional reservoir, and he final-
ly recommended that the White Swan site was worthy of inves-
tigation. 
Thus, following an examination of the foundation and the availa-
bility of materials at the White Swan site, the Commission's En-
gineer-in-Chief in a report dated 24/1/1946, recommended the 
construction of an embankment of maximum height 130 feet 
and containing approximately 1,100,000 cubic yards of rolled 
earth fill, at an estimated cost of £420,000, which figure includes 
the construction of subsidiary works such as a concrete valve 
tower and outlet conduit, concrete cut off walls etc. 
As the reservoir has practically no catchment of its own it will be 
necessary to conduct surplus waters from the Commission's 
existing catchment areas which total 21,422 acres. Consequently 
it was recommended that approximately five miles of 42 inch 
diameter pipe line be constructed from the Moorabool Reser-
voir to junction with the existing open channel near Beale's Res-
ervoir, the open channel from Beale's to Pincott's Reservoir be 
enlarged and cement lines and a combination of concrete lined 
aqueduct and 42 inch diameter Mild Steel pipe line be con-
structed from Pincott's Reservoir for a distance of approximately 
3 ¼ miles to the White Swan Reservoir. The estimated cost of 
these channels and pipe lines, together with the cost of laxing 
approximately two miles of 27 inch diameter Mild Steel pipe line 
from the new Reservoir to junction with the Commission's ex-
isting four 18 inch diameter main near the valve house on the 
Daylesford Road is £147,000; thus making the total estimated 
cost of the project being £567,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Despite that high figure, this Commission, being conscious of the 
necessity of providing an adequate water supply in order to en-
sure the progress of Ballarat and district, unanimously adopted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The now submerged White Swan pub. Photo taken in 
1947. 

the Engineer's report and forwarded a copy to the State 
Rivers and Water Supply Commission for approval. That 
authority, after a thorough examination of the report and 
also of the proposed site, on 03/06/1946 generally ap-
proved of the project. Since that date, soil testing and ex-
ploratory work has proceeded, and following a decision by 
this Commission to carry out the work by day labour meth-
ods, a considerable amount of earth-moving equipment 
has been purchased, mainly from the Commonwealth Gov-
ernment through the agency of the State Plant Allocation 
Committee. 
This plant was purchased at a very reasonable price, and to 
date it has been utilised in the construction of access 
roads, the clearing and grubbing of the area to be inundat-
ed, the stripping of the over burden on the Rich Hill side of 
the valley in which vicinity numerous mining drives and 
shafts were excavated during the gold mining days. The 
plant has also proved economical in the stripping of the 
foundations of the two embankments, the preliminary de-
velopment of borrow pit areas and in the excavation of the 
trench for the cut off wall under the smaller embankment. 
The White Swan was officially opened on August 1st.,1952. 
Water is distributed by gravitation through pipes from the 
White Swan, Gong Gong, Kirks and Pincotts to the Brown 
Hill pump house where pressures are controlled and water 
is distributed to the district. Another supply pipe from the 
White Swan supplies the Wendouree area. 
 
1947 Report to The Ballarat Water Commissioners  


